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1. WHO WE ARE AND HOW WE OPERATE

Founded in 1835 and headquartered in Melbourne Australia, Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group (ANZ) has a proud heritage of more than 180 years providing banking and
financial products and services to individual and businesses customers. We operate in 32
markets globally with representation in Australia, New Zealand, Asia, Pacific, Europe,
America and the Middle East.

ANZ is among the top four banks in Australia, the largest banking group in New Zealand
and Pacific, and among the top 50 banks in the world with total assets of AUD 978.9 billion
as of 30 September 2021.

ANZ in Thailand

ANZ has a long history in Thailand having opened a Representative Office in Bangkok in
1986. In May 2014, ANZ was one of the two banks who received approval from the
Ministry of Finance to apply, through the Bank of Thailand, for a license to operate a
subsidiary bank. On 15 June 2015, a license to operate a subsidiary bank was granted to
ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited by the Ministry of Finance. It is owned by ANZ
Group.

ANZ Bank (Thai) PCL. began its first day of operation on 29 June 2015 serving banking
needs to corporate and institutional clients from a single office in Bangkok with a total of
41 staff (as at end September 2021)

General Information:

Registered name: ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Registered address: 63 Athenee Tower, 8th Floor, Unit 801-804, Wireless Road,
Khwaeng Lumpini, Khet Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330

Tel: +66 (0) 2263 9700
Fax: +66 (0) 2168 8780
Homepage; anz.com/Thailand

Registered capital: THB 20,000 million, fully paid up.
Financial year: 1st Oct — 30th Sep
Auditor: KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.



Structure of Shareholders : As of 30 September 2021

Name of Shareholder* Number of shares held % of paid
(par value of THB10)  up shares
1. ANZ Funds Pty Ltd 1,999,999,986 100%
2. Jikk Pty Ltd 1
3. Esanda Finance Corporation Pty Ltd 1
4.  ANZ Capel Court Limited 1
5.  Votraint No. 1103 Pty Ltd 1
6. ANZ Global Services and Operations 1

Pty Ltd

7.  ANZRewards No. 2 Pty Ltd 1
8.  ANZ Leasing (Vic) Pty Ltd 1
9.  ANZProperties (Australia) Pty Ltd 1
10.  ANZ Margin Services Pty Ltd 1
11. ANZ Wealth Australia Pty Ltd 1
12.  ANZ Fiduciary Services Pty Ltd 1
13.  ANZ Underwriting Limited 1
14.  ANZ Securities (Holdings) Pty Ltd 1
15. ANZ Securities Limited 1
2,000,000,000 100%

* Each company is ultimately a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of Australia and New
Zealand Banking Group Limited.

2. BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ANZ Bank (Thai) provides a broad range of banking and financial products and services to
corporate and institutional customers in Thailand and abroad. As the only Australian bank
with both local and foreign currency capabilities, ANZ Bank (Thai) is well-positioned to
support increasing financial needs and growing business opportunities for companies
doing business in Thailand and across our network.

With in-depth local knowledge and global expertise, ANZ Bank (Thai) also gives clients
access to ANZ's extensive capabilities in resources, energy, infrastructure, food/
beverages/ agriculture, and technology to help them harness the growing trade and
investment opportunities across Australia, Asia and the Pacific, as well as support their
domestic requirements.
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Segments and Products

Customer Segments; Corporate & Institutional Banking

- Large Local Corporations
- Global Subsidiary Group (Multinational Companies)
Financial Institutions

Products
Lending Global Markets
- Working Capital Financing - FX Spot/Forwards
- Short/Long term Financing -  FXOptions
- Receivables Financing (Long Term) - FXSwaps
- Bonds
- REPO
- Forward Rate Agreement
- Interest Rate Swaps / Cross
Currency Swaps
- Interest Rate Options
- Commodities Derivatives
Transaction Banking
Trade Cash Management
- Trade Finance Loan - Deposits
- Documentary Credit Issuance - Account Services
- Documentary Collections - Payable and Receivable
- Documentary Credits Solutions
Advising/Confirmation - Overdraft
- Bills Negotiated Under LC and Not - Interest Optimisation
Under LC
- Usance Payment At Sight LC (UPAS
LC)

- Guarantees: Bid/ Performance /
Advanced Payment/ Retention Bonds

- Guarantees: Standby LCs (SBLCs)

- Guarantees: Shipping Guarantees

- Supply Chain Financing



Results of Operations

The COVID-19 pandemic has fundamentally changed the external environment across the
geographies in which ANZ operate. In Thailand, ANZ Bank (Thai) has in place contingency
planning that has been resilient in facing the key challenges driven by COVID-19.

Market conditions normalised in 2021, as companies re-established and re-configured
supply chains following periods of significant interruption in the early stages of the COVID-
19 pandemic. Customers were initially more focused on repaying facilities, which reduced
demand for credit. As customers adapted to changing market conditions they sought
opportunities to grow their businesses, including through mergers and acquisitions. ANZ
Bank (Thai) continues to make good progress on building and strengthening customer
portfolio.  Client acquisition was largely targeted at MNC (supporting network
connectivity) whilst for Large Corporate, the focus was on deepening relationships with
our high-quality customer base. With the greater connectivity and multi-level approach
we have witnessed stronger customer relationships and improved quality of revenue.
Our simplification agenda and ongoing investment in digital platforms helped drive
efficiencies and improve customer experience while adhering to local regulatory
requirements. This allows us to continue focusing on portfolio growth whilst maintaining
a well-managed portfolio.

We remain compliant with all key risk metrics. Operations and system capabilities have
been fully launched and implemented with satisfactory outcome.

ANZ Institutional was named #1 for Relationship Quality in Asia, and a top five Corporate
Bank for overall market penetration in Asia by Greenwich. TRIS Rating (a strategic partner
with S&P Global Ratings) affirms the company rating on ANZ Bank (Thai) at “AAA” with a
“stable” rating outlook. The strong rating reflects ANZ Bank (Thai)’s status as a highly
strategic subsidiary of ANZ Group (“AA-/Stable”).

On the financial front, the bank delivered revenue of THB 605 million and incurred
expenses of THB 398 million. Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) at year end stood at THB 196
million.

Financial Highlights for the year ended 30 September, 2021

Units in THB’Mil

Loan to Customers 19,401
Revenue 605
Expense 398
Profit from Operation 245
Net Profit 196
Total Comprehensive income 171
Capital Adequacy Ratio 61.63%
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3. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Loans and obligations to/from major shareholders and related parties with potential
conflict of interest (as at 30 September 2021) are disclosed fully in detail under the
Independent Auditor’s Report, Notes to Financial Statements no. 26 attached to this

report.

4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.1 Board Committees

4.1.1 Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible to shareholders for the governance of the Bank,
defining the strategy, ensuring effective control and overseeing its operations and financial

performance.

In the Board of Director Meeting #5/2020 on 16 October 2020, the Board approved the
integration of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) Function into the Board
effective January 2021. Key responsibilities in the NRC Charter have been integrated in the

Board Charter.

As of 30 September 2021 the Board of directors comprises 7 Board members: three
Independent Directors, two Executive Directors, and two Non-Executive Directors, as

follows.

Mr. Richard Robert Stewart Dawson
Ms. Panada Kanokwat

Mr. Padungdej Indralak

Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai

Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul

Mr. Chatri Sotangkur

N ok~ w N Re

Ms. Carli Renzi

Ms. Nisarat Chamikorn

Chairman / Non-Executive Director

Vice Chairman and Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary

In 2021 there were four meetings of the Board of Directors.


http://shareholder.anz.com/our-company/board-of-directors

4.1.2 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is established by the Board of Directors to assist it in performing its
oversight responsibilities and also to oversee and assess the efficiency and appropriateness
of implementation of risk management process of ANZ Thai. The committee members are;

1. Mr. Padungdej Indralak Chairman, Independent Director
Ms. Panada Kanokwat Independent Director

3. Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai Independent Director
Ms. Wiwan Chanakot Head of Internal Audit, Secretary

The Audit Committee held four meetings during year 2021.

4.1.3 Special Appointments Committee (SAC)

In January 2020, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) Function had been
integrated into the Board. In order to ensure strong governance on key appointments, a
Special Appointments Committee (SAC) meeting be called to cover specifically the
appointments of Directors and the Country Head. Composition of the Special Appointments
Committee will continue to mirror the NRC with three members comprising the Board
Chairman and two Independent Directors, where the Vice Chairman will act as the Chairman
for any ad hoc meeting.

The Special Appointments Committee had two meetings during the year 2021.
4.1.4 Directors’ Meetings

The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the year and each
Director’s attendance at those meetings are set out below:

Name Board Cor:Lrlndi:cttee
Mr. Richard Robert Stewart Dawson 4/4

Ms. Panada Kanokwat 4/4 4/4
Mr. Padungdej Indralak 4/4 4/4
Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai 4/4 4/4
Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul 4/4

Mr. Chatri Sotangkur 4/4

Ms. Carli Renzi 4/4
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4.2 Other Committees

4.2.1 Executive Committee

1. Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul President and Chief Executive Officer, Chair
2. Mr. Maya Lim EVP - Chief Risk Officer

3. Ms. Warin Paaopanchon EVP - Chief Financial Officer

4. Mr. Chatri Sotangkur EVP - Head of Markets

5. Mr. Vijay Tangirala EVP - Head of Coverage

6. Ms. Tani Michelle Cruz SVP - Head of Talent and Culture

7. Mr. Praveen Katiyar SVP - Chief Operating Officer

8. Ms. Pornpimol Rutthapichairak SVP - Head of Compliance

Ms. Nisarat Chamikorn Business Manager, Secretary

4.2.2 Risk Management Committee

1. Mr. Maya Lim EVP - Chief Risk Officer, Chairman
2. Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul President and Chief Executive Officer
3. Mr. Chatri Sotangkur EVP - Head of Markets
4. Ms. Warin Paaopanchon EVP - Chief Financial Officer
5. Mr. Vijay Tangirala EVP - Head of Coverage
6. Mr. Praveen Katiyar SVP - Chief Operating Officer
7. Ms. Pornpimol Rutthapichairak SVP - Head of Compliance
8. Mr. Gaurav Mathur SVP - Head of Research and Analysis
Mr. Nithin Fernandez Manager, Business Governance & Controls,
Secretary

4.2.3 Credit Committee

1. Mr. Maya Lim EVP - Chief Risk Officer, Chairman

2. Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul President and Chief Executive Officer

3. Mr. Vijay Tangirala EVP - Head of Coverage

4, Mr. Gaurav Mathur SVP - Head of Research and Analysis,
Secretary

5. Ms. Voravan Vinichbutr SVP - Local Corporates

6. Mr. Yuttapol Chalermkiatkul SVP - Global Subsidiaries Group

7. Ms. Bhimchanok Dhubthien VP - Research and Analysis

8. Ms. Pimonporn Boonkhetpitak VP - Market Risk
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4.3 Selection of Directors and Senior Executives

Selection of Directors

With the integration of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) function into
the Board, the NRC-reviewed and NRC-endorsed Recruitment and On-boarding policies, and
the Remuneration Principles and Structure Policy together with the ANZ Thai Salary ranges
continue to be the guiding framework for the annual Performance and Remuneration Review
cycle. These were approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2015
on 17 March 2015, with updates subsequently approved. The recruitment and on-boarding
policies involve hiring rigour procedures to ensure that qualified candidates are
appropriately assessed based on suitable and relevant educational background and work
experience. In relation to the appointment of the Board Directors and the CEO, a Special
Appointments Committee (SAC) is in place to ensure the proper selection of suitable
candidates and submit the proposed nominations to the Board of Directors for their review
and approval. Other than the general qualifications, the key selection criteria involve the
compliance of the candidates’ qualifications with the applicable commercial banking laws
such as the Public Limited Companies Act, the Financial Institutions Businesses Act, etc.

In every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of the directors will retire by
rotation. The Bank arranges for the shareholders to elect each director to replace the
outgoing directors one by one. In voting for election of directors, each shareholder shall have
votes equal to the number of shares held by him/her multiplied by the number of directors
to be elected. Each shareholder may cast all of his/her votes to elect a person or persons as
directors. In the case of election of persons as directors, he/she may split as many votes to
any persons. The persons obtaining the highest number of votes in descending order shall
be elected as directors according to the number of directors electable in that election. The
retiring directors, in addition, may be re-elected.

Selection of Senior Executives

For senior executives from the level of Senior Vice President and above, who are functional
heads and directly reporting to President and CEO, the selection criteria are focused on the
relevant individual competencies and experience. In addition to the professional
qualifications required by the role, it is also expected that the senior executives from the
level of Senior Vice President and above, whatever the name of the position, have a good
understanding of the ANZ business strategy and the required ANZ competencies for the role.
More so, the candidates must comply with the Fit and Proper requirements according to the
applicable commercial banking laws such as the Public Limited Companies Act, the Financial
Institutions Business Act, etc.
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Remuneration

Monetary Payment

The three active Independent Directors received remuneration totalling to THB 4.6 million
in 2021. A new Remuneration Structure for Independent Directors was approved by the
resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 5/2019 on 16 October 2020 with effective
date of 27 November 2019. The remuneration table below for the three active Independent
Directors reflect the new Remuneration Structure.

Units in THB
. . Audit Com  Audit Com
Name of Directors Director’s .
. Chairman’s Member’s Total
(Active for FY2021) Fee
Fee Fee
Period Cover (2021) Oct — Sep Oct — Sep Oct - Sep
1. Mr. Padungdej Indralak 1,000,000 600,000 1,600,000
2. Miss Panada Kanokwat 1,200,000 400,000 1,600,000
2. Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai 1,000,000 400,000 1,400,000

The four remaining Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors did not receive remuneration
from the Bank in 2021, as prescribed by the ANZ Group policy:

1. Mr. Richard Robert Stewart Dawson Chairman / Non-Executive Director
2. Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul Executive Director

3. Mr. Chatri Sotangkur Executive Director

4. Mrs. Carli Anne Renzi Non-Executive Director

For financial year 2021, the amount of remuneration paid to the 10 senior executives from the
level of Senior Vice President and above totalled to THB 97.94 million.

Other remuneration
The Bank has accrued for the statutory severance pay of the eligible eight senior executives

(out of the 10 senior executive roles) as per actuarial calculations, in the amount of THB 5.3
million for 2021.
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4.4 Directorship in other companies by the Board and senior executives

4.4.1 Board of Directors

Name of Directors

Directorship in other companies

Mr. Richard Robert Stewart
Dawson

Director, ANZEF Limited (UK)
Director, Minerva Holdings Limited (UK)

Ms. Panada Kanokwat

Mr. Padungdej Indralak

Independent Director, and member of Audit
Committee, Southeast Insurance Co., Ltd.
Independent Director, and member of Audit
Committee, Southeast Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Independent Director, and member of Audit
Committee, Southeast Capital Co., Ltd.
Independent Director, member of Audit Committee,
and member of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Thai Group Holding PCL.
Independent Director, and Chairman of Audit
Committee, Sappe PCL.

Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai

Independent Director, member of the Audit
Committee, and Chairman of the Risk Policy
Committee, Central Retail Corporation PCL.
Independent Director, member of the Audit
Committee, Chairman of the Governance Nomination
Committee and member of the Compensation
Committee, Thaicom PCL.

Independent Director, member of the Audit
Committee, and Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, Interlink Communication PCL.
Independent Director, and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Glow Energy PCL.

Independent Director, and Chairman of the Audit
committee , Bangkok Glass PCL.

Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul

Mr. Chatri Sotangkur

Mrs. Carli Anne Renzi

President, AustCham Laos
Director, AustCham ASEAN

12
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4.4.2 Senior Executives

Name of Executives

Directorship in other companies

Ms. Panadda Manoleehakul

Mr. Maya Lim

Ms. Warin Paaopanchon

e Authorised Director, Ataya Pattana Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chatri Sotangkur -

Mr. Vijay Tangirala e Director, Ishva Realty Private Limited (India)

Mr. Praveen Katiyar -

Ms. Tani Michelle Cruz -

Ms. Pornpimol Rutthapichairak -

Mr. Gaurav Mathur -

Ms. Wiwan Chanakot e Authorised Director, Srangdee Development Co., Ltd
e Authorised Director, A Plus Con Architect Co., Ltd

4.5 Organisation chart:

ol ANZ Thai Management Team

As at 30 September 2021

Credit Committee

Risk Management
Committee

Spedal Appointments
Committee

Business Manager [
Company Sacretary
Mizarat Chamikorn

President/CEQ

Panadda Manoleehakul

‘ 8

Global Products

Customer
Segments

Enablement Partners
Business Support
.

Head of Markets
Chatri Sotangkur

Head of Coverage*
Vijay Anand Tangirala

*Role includes Relationship Manager function for Financial Institutions Group (FIG)

Chief Financial Officer
Warin Paaopanchon

Head of Research & Analysis

Gaurav Mathur

Chief Risk Officer
{Thailand and Myanmar)
Maya Lim

Chief Operating Officer
Praveen Katiyar

Head of Talent & Culture
Tani Michelle Cruz

Head of Compliance

Head of Internal Audit
Wiwan Chanakot



5. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited comprises three Independent
Directors with Ms. Wiwan Chanakot (Head of Internal Audit) serving as secretary to the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee Members are listed as below:

1) Mr. Padungdej Indralak Independent Director / Chair of Audit Committee
2) Mes. Panada Kanokwat Independent Director
3) Ms. Patareeya Benjapolchai Independent Director

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings in calendar year 2021. Minutes and recommendations from each
Audit Committee meeting were presented to the Board of Directors to seek directives on issues and the
Board may see fit.

The Audit Committee performed its duties in accordance with the scope of responsibilities as follows:

1) Review and endorse the Annual Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s report as at 30
September 2020, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
for the period ended 30 September 2020 and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information to ensure conformity with acceptable
accounting principles and adequate disclosure before submitting to the Board of Directors’
Meetings for approval;

2) Approved the Country Audit Plan for 2021 and review the activities, staffing and organisational
structure of the internal audit function to ensure its independence. Also, followed up, queried,
commented and provided guidance for corrective actions of issues, the result of the corrective
actions and to acknowledge irregularities, operational mistakes, their causes and preventive;

3) Approved the Credit Review Plan for 2021;

4) Approved Compliance Report and Compliance Plan for 2021;

5) Acknowledged on Non-Compliance and Concerned Issues, followed up, queried, commented to
ensure compliance with related regulations;

6) Made recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the nomination of the Bank’s
Independent Auditor and its remuneration; and

7) Acknowledged the risk issues discussed at the Risk Management Committee.

The Audit Committee performed its duties as assigned by the Board of Directors. Its performance
adhered to integrity, prudence, transparency, independence, and to the ultimate benefit of the Bank.

The Audit Committee consistently reviewed the Bank’s financial reports, internal controls and also
monitored performance of the Bank to ensure its compliance with all regulatory requirements. The
Audit Committee is satisfied that the information contained therein is adequate, transparent and in line
with good corporate governance practices.

/g"’?*y

Mr. Padungdej Indralak
Chair of Audit Committee
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6.

AUDITOR’S REPORT & AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL REPORT



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Financial statements for the year ended
30 September 2021
and
Independent Auditor’s Report



KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. L3 iafEnA iilae aeuniny® annn
50" Floor, Empire Tower 4 50 1Bu Iwinnaned

1 South Sathorn Road, Yannawa 1 DUUANTIF WD2981UI90
Sathorn, Bangkok 10120, Thailand WIRAINT NN 10120
Tel +66 2677 2000 s +66 2677 2000

Fax +66 2677 2222 wrng +66 2677 2222
Website home.kpmgy/th Aulas home.kpmg/th

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited (the “Bank™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2021, the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 30 September 2021 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) and the regulations of the Bank of
Thailand.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. I am independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions that is relevant to my audit of the financial
statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be made. /

3 Audit Ltd . a Thai inmted habihty company and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
s affiliated wath KPMG International Cooperative 'KPMG International’l, a Swiss entity
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRSs and the regulations of the Bank of Thailand, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. /
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
I identify during my audit.

J Gy

(Pantip Gulsantithamrong)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 4208

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
14 January 2022



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market items, net

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative assets

Investments, net

Loans to customers and accrued inferest receivables, net
Leasehold building improvements and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets

Trading securities receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Nore

10,15, 26
i1
12,26
13,15
14,15
i0
36

17,26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
603 612
15,860,969 12,122,160
1,489,321 -
4,767,958 4,021,851
5,848,004 7,971,176
19,401,512 20,872,529
18,867 26,692
31,807 26,603
245,161 50,816
334,408 190,924
47,998,610 45,289,363




ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

30 September

Liabilities and equity Note 2021

2020

(in thousand Baht)

Liabilities
Deposits 18 13,902,441 11,057,263
Interbank and money market items 19, 26 8,310,874 9,401,089
Liabilities payable on demand 943 7,910
Derivative liabilities 12,26 4,156,179 4,030,534
Lease liabilities 11,392 15,527
Trading securities payable - 28,420
Provisions for employee benefits 26 71,031 69,111
Other liabilities 15, 20, 26 1,066,882 380,091
Total liabilities 27,519,742 24,989,945
Equity
Share capital

Authorised share capital

(2.000.000,000 ordinary shares, par value at Baht 10 per share) 20,000,000 20,000,000

[ssued and paid-up share capital

(2,000,000,000 ordinary shares, par value at Baht 10 per share) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Other reserves 18,287 34,484
Retained earnings

Appropriated

Legal reserve 23 23,029 13,246

Unappropriated 437,552 251,688
Total equity 20,478,868 20,299,418
Total liabilities and equity 47,998,610 45,289,363

flasr=1P It
(Warin Paaopanchon) (Panadda Manoleehakul)
Chief Financial Officer President and Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Interest mcome
Interest expenses
Net interest income
Fees and service income
Fees and service expenses
Net fees and service income
Net gains on financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Net gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions
Net gain on investments
Other operating income
Total operating income
Other operating expenses
Employee expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties
Others
Total operating expenses
Reversal of expected credit losses
Bad debts, doubtful accounts and impairment loss
Profit from operations before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
Ttems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Losses on investments in debt instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Gains on remeasuring available-for-sale investments
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
Total items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, net of tax

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, net of tax

Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in Baht)

M /
(Warin Paaopanchon)
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended
30 September
Note 2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
26,27 564,244 646,839
26, 28 70,439 122,055
493,805 524,784
15,100 22,389
10,618 11,740
29 4,482 10,649
30 97,051 -
30 - 186,264
31 1,291 1,668
26 8,766 13,470
605,395 736,835
26, 32 274,210 272,767
4,600 4,639
33 41.316 64,599
16,646 24,149
26, 34 61,285 91,014
398,057 457,168
35 (37.469) -
35 - 21,762
244,807 257,905
36 49,160 52,618
195,647 205,287
(30,585) -
- 23,107
36 6,117 (4,621)
(24,468) 18,486
- (3.233)
- 647
- (2,586)
(24,468) 15,900
171,179 221,187
0.10 0.10

Pig

(Panadda Manoleehakul)

President and Chief Executive Officer
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit from operations before income tax expense .
Adjustments to reconcile profit from operations before
income tax expense o cash receipts (paymenis)
Depreciation and amortisation
Reversal expected credit losses
Bad debts, allowance for doubtful accounts and impairment loss
Gain from sale of leasehold building improvements and equipment

Net gains on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions

Net gain on investments

Provision made

Net interest income

Proceeds from interest

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Profit from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Interbank and money market items
Derivative assets

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in trading securities

Loans to customers

Trading securities receivable

Other assets

Increase (decreasej in operating liabilities
Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Liabilities payable on demand

Derivative liabilities

Trading securities payable

Other liabilities

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

The accomparnying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

9

For the year ended
30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
244,807 257,905
9,336 21,412
(37,469) -
- 21,762
- (67)
(97,051) -
- (186,264)
(1,291) (1,668)
1,920 4,831
(493,803) (524,784)
568,419 674,561
{(72,039) (121,206)
(47,059) (58,769)
75,768 87,713
(3,743,337) (8,871,052)

(636,623) (1,043,919)
(1,038,467) -
- 315,359
1,566,929 (2,739,007)
(194,344) (30,147)
(136,936) 127,469
2,845,178 5,086,638
(1,090,215) 6,908,885
(6,967) (31,544)
125,646 1,272,401
(28,420) (58,866)
671,272 104,153
(1,591,016) 1,128,103




ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments in debt instruments measured

at fair value through other comprehensive income
Purchases of available-for-sale investments
Proceeds of investments in debt instruments measured

at fair value through other comprehensive income
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments
Purchases of leasehold building improvements and equipment

Proceeds from sale of leasehold building improvements and equipment
Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash
Cash as at 1 October 2020 /2019
Cash as at 30 September

Supplementary disclosures of cash flow information
Significant non-cash items

Gains (losses) on investments in debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Gains on remeasuring available-for-sale investments

o= [

(Warin Paaopanchon)
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended

30 September

2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
(591,346) -
- (6,667,788)
2,188,000 <
- 5,558,000
(961) (12,713)
2 231
1,595,693 (1,122,270)
(4,686) (6.238)
(4,686) (6,238)
® (405)
612 1,017
603 612
(30,585) -
23,107

P e

(Panadda Manoleehakul)

President and Chief Executive Officer



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

Note Contents

1 General information

2 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

3 Change in accounting policy

4 Significant accounting policies

5 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

6 Financial risk management

7 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

8 Maintenance of capital fund

9 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

10 Interbank and money market items, net (assets)

11 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
12 Derivatives

13 Investments, net

14 Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net

15 Allowance for expected credit losses / allowance for doubtful accounts
16 Leasehold building improvements and equipment, net

17 Other assets
18 Deposits

19 Interbank and money market items (liabilities)

20 Other liabilities

21 Advance received from electronic payment

22 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
23 Reserves

24 Assets pledged as collateral
25 Contingent liabilities
26 Related parties

27 Interest income

28 Interest expenses

29 Net fees and service income

30 Net gain (Josses) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss /
Net gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions

31 Net gain on investments

32 Employees expenses

33 Premises and equipment expenses

34 Other expenses

35 Expected credit losses / bad debt, doubtful accounts and impairment loss

36 Income tax

37 Basic earnings per share

38 Reclassification of accounts
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

2.1

2.2

These notes form an integral part of financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the
Thai language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language
statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
14 January 2022.

General information

ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited (the “Bank”) was registered and incorporated as a juristic
person in Thailand under the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535. The Bank’s head office is located
at 63 Athenee Tower, 8% Floor, Unit 801-804, Wireless Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok. The
Bank does not have any other branches,

The Bank, incorporated as a commercial bank in Thailand, was given the banking license by The
Ministry of Finance on 15 June 2015.

The immediate and ultimate parent companies during the financial year are ANZ Funds Pty. Ltd. and
ANZ Banking Group Limited. Both are incorporated in Australia.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial reporting; guidelines promulgated
by the Federation of Accounting Professions; and presented as prescribed by the Bank of Thailand
(“BoT™) Notification number Sor Nor Sor 21/2561, directive dated 31 October 2018, regarding to “The
preparation and announcement of the financial statements of commercial banks and holding companies
which are the parent company of a financial group™ as well as other related regulations of Bank of
Thailand.

The Bank has initially applied TFRS - Financial instruments standards which comprise TFRS 9
Financial Instruments and relevant standards and interpretations and disclosed impact from changes to
significant accounting policies in note 3. Other new and revised TFRS effective for annual accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 October 2020, except for TFRS 16 Lease, the Bank has early adopted
before effective date, the initial application of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in change in
certain of the Bank’s accounting policies. There is no material impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

In addition, the Bank has not early adopted a number of new and revised TFRS, which are not yet
effective for the current year in preparing these financial statements. The Bank has assessed the potential
initial impact on the financial statements of these new and revised TFRS and expects that there will be
no material impact on the financial statements in the year of initial application.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht, which is the Bank’s functional

currency. All financial information presented in Thai Baht and has been rounded in the notes to the
financial statements to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

12



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

2.3 Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Bank’s accounting policies.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

(i} Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 4 (f) Establishing the criteria for determination whether credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, determining the methodology
for incorporating forward-looking information into the measurement of expected
credit loss (ECL) and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL;

(i) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties at 30 September 2021 that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
financial year is included in the following notes:

Note 15 Impairment of financial instruments: determination of inputs into the ECL
measurement model, including key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash
flows and incorporation of forward-looking information.

3  Change in accounting policy
From 1 October 2020, the Bank has initially applied TFRS - Financial instruments standards
(a} TFRS - Financial instruments standards

The Bank has adopted TFRS - Financial instruments standards using the cumulative effect,
taking into account the effect of initially applying these standards only to financial instruments
that were not derecognised before 1 October 2020 as an adjustment to retained earnings or other
reserves at 1 October 2020, except for the excess allowance, the Bank has opted to recognise as
expense through profit or loss on straight-line basis over 5 years. Therefore, the Bank did not
adjust the information presented for comparative year. The disclosure requirements of TFRS
for financial instruments have not generally been applied to comparative information.

These TFRS - Financial instruments standards establish requirements related to definition,
recognition, measurement, impairment and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including accounting for derivatives and hedge accounting. The details of accounting
policies are disclosed in note 4(f), 4(g) and 4(1). The impact from adoption of TFRS - Financial
instruments standards are as follows:

13



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

(a.1)

(a.2)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

TFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification is based on the cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset and the business model in which they are managed. However, the Bank may, at
initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL. TFRS 9
eliminates the previous classification of held-to-maturity debt securities, available-for-sale
securities, trading securities and general investment as specified by TAS 105.

Under TFRS 9, interest income and interest expenses recognised from all financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost shall be calculated using effective interest rate
method. Previously, the Bank recognised interest income and interest expenses at the rate
specified in the contract.

The following table shows classification and measurement categories under TAS 105 and TFRS 9.

Classification under TAS 1035 at 30 September 2020 Classification under TFRS 9 at 1 Qctober 2020
Carrying
amounts FVTPL FVOCI Total
(in thousand Baht)
Current investments
Debt securities held for trading 480,779 480,779 - 430,779
Debt securities available for sale 7,496,397 - 7,496,397 7,496,397
7,977,176 480,779 7,496,397 7,977,176
Derivative assets 4,021,851 4,021,851 - 4,021,851
Derivative liabilities 4,030,534 4,030,534 - 4,030,534

Impairment - Financial assets and contract assets

TFRS 9 introduces lifetime expected credit loss (ECL) model whereas previously the Bank
estimates allowance for doubtful account by analysing payment histories, future expectation of
customer payment and compliance with the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts required
based on the BoT’s guideline. TFRS 9 requires considerable judgement about how changes in
economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis. The
new impairment model applies to financial assets that are not measured at FVTPL consisted
with financial assets that are debt instrument, financial guarantee and loan commitment issued.

14



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

(a)

The Bank has determined that the application of TFRS 9°s impairment requirements at
1 October 2020 results in a change in the allowance for expected credit losses as follows:

Allowance for Allowance for
expected credit losses expected credit losses
as at as at
30 September 2020 Remeasured 1 October 2020
(in thousand Baht)

Interbank and money market

items, net 8,191 (6,107) 2,084
Investment, net’ - 10,339 10,339
Loans to customers and

accrued interest

receivables, net 210,451 (71,606} 138,845
Credit facilities and financial

guarantee contracts - 18,563 18,563

*Allowance for expected credit losses for investment in debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income presents in other reserve

The Bank has excess reserve on the date of adoption of financial instruments standards as the
allowance for doubtful accounts as at 30 September 2020 exceeded the allowance for expected
credit loss calculated according to the financial instruments standards. The Bank will amortise
the excess reserve using the straight-line method over 5 years in accordance with BoT Circular
number Thor Por Tor. For Nor Sor. (23) Wor. 1603/2562, directive dated 6 November 2019,
regarding “The Clarification of Management of Excess Reserve”.

As at 1 October 2020, The Bank has excess allowance for expected credit losses amounting to
Baht 48.81 million from loan to customers and accrued interest receivables which are disclosed
in note 15

The impact of the adjustment transactions to equity are as the following:

(in thousand Baht}
Equity — Other reserve as at 30 September 2020 37,070
ECL for investment in debt instrument measured at FVOCI 10,339
Related tax (2,068)
Equity — Other reserves as at 1 October 2020 45,341

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these
financial statements. Except for the change in accounting policy as disclosed in note 3.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange difference arising from translation
is recognised in profit or loss.
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 September 2021

(b) Cash

(¢

Cash comprises cash in hand and cash in collection.
Leasehold building improvements and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Owned assets

Leasehold building improvements and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment Josses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased sofiware
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of leasehold building improvements and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of leasehold building improvements and
equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of leasehold building improvements and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of leasehold building
improvements and equipment, and are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent cosis

The cost of replacing a part of an item of leasehold building improvements and equipment is recognised
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Bank, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of leasehold building improvements and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount of leasehold building improvements and
equipment, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of leasehold building improvements and equipment. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Leasehold building improvements 5 years (or remaining of lease contract)
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment |, 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided on assets under construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

(@

(¢)

Intangible assets
Software licenses

Software licenses that are acquired by the Bank and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated
useful life for the sofiware licenses is 3 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non - financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous
revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

Impairment losses recognised in prior years in respect of non-financial assets are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
cartying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

W

Financial instruments
Accounting policies applicable from 1 October 2020
Recognition and initial measurement

The Bank initially recognises loans to customer and deposits on the date on which they are originated.
All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are
recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCT only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL;

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which are not
equity instrument, that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management,

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value

basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held
both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
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ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPFPI)

For the purposes of this assessment,

‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.

‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs}, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Bank considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making the assessment, the Bank considers:

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and
features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Reclassifications of finamcial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Modifications of financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one for
either credit or commercial reasons, an assessment is made to determine if the changes to the terms of
the existing financial asset are considered substantial. This assessment considers both changes in cash
flows arising from the modified terms as well as changes in the overall financial instrument risk profile;
for example, changes in the principal (credit limit), term, or type of underlying collateral. Where a
modification is considered non-substantial, the existing financial asset is not derecognised and its date
of origination continues to be used to determine SICR. Where a modification is considered substantial,
the existing financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at its fair value on
the modification date, which also becomes the date of origination used to determine SICR for this new
financial asset.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and
a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as
part of the modification are accounted.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

19



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

On derecognition of a financial asset, which are not equity instrument designated at FVOCI, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of
the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are debts issued that have contractual obligation to pay principal or interest before
liquidation.

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL

Modifications of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. The consideration paid includes any
non-cash assets transferred and new liabilities assumed.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost
of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest
rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

Impairment
Measurement of Expected Credit Loss

The measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased, probability weighted prediction which evaluates a range of
scenarios and takes into account the time value of money, past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECL is calculated as the product of the following credit risk factors at a facility level, discounted to
incorporate the time value of money:
¢ Probability of default (PD) - the estimate of the likelihood that a borrower will default over a given
period;
¢ Exposure at default (EAD) - the expected balance sheet exposure at default taking into account
repayments of principal and inferest, expected additional drawdowns and accrued interest; and
» Loss given default (LGD) - the expected loss in the event of the borrower defaulting, expressed as a
percentage of the facility's EAD, taking into account direct and indirect recovery costs.

These credit risk factors are adjusted for current and forward-looking information through the use of macro-
economic variables.
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For ECL recognition, financial assets are classified in any of the 3 stages at each reporting date. A financial
asset can move between stages during its lifetime. ECL are either measured over 12 months or the expected
lifetime of the financial asset, depending on credit deterioration since origination, according to the following
three-stage approach:

» Stage I: At the origination of a financial asset, and where there has not been a Significant Increase in
Credit Risk (SICR) since origination, an allowance for expected credit losses equivalent to 12 months
ECL is recognised reflecting the expected credit losses resulting from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months from the reporting date. For instruments with a remaining maturity of less
than 12 months, ECL are estimated based on default events that are possible over the remaining time
to maturity.

e Stage 2: Where there has been a SICR since origination, an allowance equivalent to lifetime ECL
is recognised reflecting expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. If credit risk were to improve in a subsequent period such that
the increase in credit risk since origination is no longer considered significant, the financial instrument
returns to a Stage 1 classification and a 12 month ECL applies.

» Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit-impaired or in default, an allowance equivalent to lifetime
ECL is recognized. For impaired financial assets that have not been subject to restructuring, a transfer
to stage 2 or stage 1 is permitted only where the asset is no longer considered to be impaired.
A financial instrument will no longer be considered credit-impaired when there is no shortfall of cash
flows compared to the original contractual terms.

For the Bank, ECL are estimated on a collective basis for exposures in Stage 1 and Stage 2, and on an
individual basis when transferred to Stage 3.

Expected Life of financial instrument

When estimating ECL in Stage 2 and 3, the Bank considers the expected lifetime over which it is exposed to
credit risk. For non-revolving credit facilities, the Bank uses the maximum contractual period as the expected
lifetime of financial instrument. For revolving credit facilities, the expected life reflects the Bank’s
contractual right to withdraw a facility as part of a contractually agreed annual review, after taking into
account the applicable notice period.

Definition of default, credit impaired and write-offs

The definition of default used in measuring expected credit losses is aligned to the definition used for
internal credit risk management purposes across all portfolios. This definition is also in line with the
regulatory definition of default. Default occurs when there are indicators that a debtor is unlikely to fully
satisfy contractual credit obligations to the Bank, or the exposure is 90 days past due,

Financial assets, including those that are well secured, are considered credit impaired for financial
reporting purposes when they default.

When there is no realistic probability of recovery, loans are written off against the related impairment
allowance on completion of the Bank’s internal processes and when all reasonably expected recoveries
have been collected. In subsequent periods, any recoveries of amounts previously written-off are
credited to credit impairment charge in the profit or loss.
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Accounting policies applicable before 1 October 2020
Invesiments
Investments in debt securities

Debt securities held for trading are classified as trading securities and stated at fair value, with any
resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities, other than those securities held for trading are classified as. available-for-sale
investments. Available-for-sale investments are, subsequent to initial recognition, stated at fair value,
and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale
monetary items, are recognised directly in equity. Impairment losses and foreign exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of investments in debt securities traded in Thai established market are calculated based
on the Thai Bond Market Association yield curve at the reporting date, or at the latest trading date prior
to the reporting date if there is no trading on that date.

Initial recognition

Purchases and sales of investment are initially recognised on trade date which is the date that the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the investments.

Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount

together with the associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

If the Bank disposes part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part sold is
determined using the weighted average method applied to the carrying value of the total holding of the
investment.

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are stated at the outstanding principal amount, except for Bank overdrafts which
include accrued interest receivable. Bill purchased at a discount is stated at the face value of the bills,
net of deferred revenue.

Impairment of financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous
revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the value of the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has
not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
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Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of available-for-sale financial assets is calculated by reference to the fair value.
Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s review and assessment of the status of
individual debtors and the Bank’s classification of loans as prescribed by the BoT’s regulations.
Such assessment takes into consideration various factors including the risk involved, value of the
collateral and the current status of individual debtors.

The BoT has guidelines for establishing a minimum level of allowance for doubtful accounts, which is
primarily determined by applying specified percentages to the different classifications of financing in
conjunction with the consideration of collateral valuation. Financing classification is based principally
on the period that a financing is past due. The Bank has set up the minimum allowance for doubtful
accounts according to the BoT regulations.

Based on the BoT’s regulations, the Bank has classified its loan portfolios into six categories, primarily
based on the non-accrual period. For loans classified as pass and special-mention, the calculation of
allowances for doubtful accounts is based on the regulatory minimum percentage requirement, taking
into consideration the collateral value, where the collateral type and date of the latest appraisal are
qualifying factors. For loans classified as sub-standard, doubtful and doubtful of loss, the allowance on
these accounts will be set at 100 percent of the difference between the cutstanding book value of the
debt and the present value of future cash flows expected to be received, or the expected proceeds from
the disposal of collateral, in accordance with the BoT’s regulations.

The allowance for doubtful accounts established during the year is charged as an expense in profit or
loss.

Bad debts written-off are recorded as charges to the allowance for doubtful accounts. All bad debts
recovered are recognised as revenue in profit or loss from operations.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to interest and foreign exchange rates and
arising from operational, financing and investment activities. Derivative financial instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value from the date a derivative contract is entered into (trade
date) and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss on remeasurement depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive as “Derivatives assets” and as liabilities
when fair value is negative as “Derivatives liabilities” in the statements of financial position.
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The fair value of forward exchange agreements is their market price at the reporting date, being the
present value of the quoted forward price.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated by discounting future cash flows based on the terms
and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar instrument at the reporting
date.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed in profit or loss during the year
as the related service is provided.

Defined benefit plans

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior years,
discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Bank, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any fiture
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any application minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately
in OCI. The Bank determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the year by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the year as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Bank recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is generally
recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting year of the awards.
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance
conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-
date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up
for differences between expected and actual outcomes,
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'The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are

settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period
that the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each
reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as
personnel expenses in profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.

Measurement of fair values

The Bank has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a valuation team in Group level that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair
value measurements, including level 3 fair values, and reports through to the Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation team in Group level regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of TFRS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

. Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly,

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are based on unobservable inputs.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Bank recognised transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year
during which the change has occurred.

Interest

Accounting Policy applicable from 1 October 2020

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.
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When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument, but not ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

The “gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting
for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of
a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation
of cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.
If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Accounting Policy applicable before 1 October 2020

The Bank recognises interest and discounts on loans as income on an accrual basis, except for interest
on Joans which are outstanding over 3 months at the date of the statement of financial position and
interest from receivables under troubled debt restructuring agreements where the borrowers” ability to
pay is uncertain. Such interest is recognised when received. The Bank reverses all accrued interest
income for items which are no longer on an accrual basis. [nterest on interbank and money market items
and investments is recognised on an accrual basis.

Interest income on restructured loans of the Bank are recognised on the same accrual basis as used for
loans mentioned above, except for loans that are subject to monitoring for compliance with restructuring
conditions, where the Bank recognise interest income on a cash basis until the borrowers have been able
to comply with the restructuring conditions for a period of no less than three months or three instalments,

whichever is longer.

Interest or discounts, which are already included in the face value of notes receivable or loans, are
deferred and taken up as income evenly over the term of the notes or loans.

Interest income on loans fo customers

Interest income on loans to customers is recognised on an accrual basis, except for interest on loans to
customers classified as overdue in excess of three months where, regardless of whether the loans to
customers are covered by collateral, the interest is recognised on a cash basis in accordance with the
BoT’s regulations. The accrued interest income from loans to customers is reversed against interest
income when interest income on loans overdue for more than three months or being downgraded to
classified assets.

Initerest income on investments

Interest income on investments is recognised on an accrual basis. Discounts received on purchase of
debt securities are recognised on effective interest method over the period to maturity.

26



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

(m)

(n)

Interest expenses
Interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis.
Fees and service income

Fees and service income are recognised as revenue when a customer obtains control of the services in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled to. In addition,
judgment is required in determining the timing of the transfer of control for revenue recognition - at a
point in time or over time.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Bank takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Bank believes that its
accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Bank to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities;
such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the year that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to seftle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares which is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the number of ordinary shares issued during
the year.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of financial
position when the Bank has a legal, enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the
transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis.

Related parties

A related patty is a person or entity that has direct or indirect control or has significant influence over
the financial and managerial decision-making of the Bank; a person or entity that are under common
control or under the same significant influence as the Bank; or the Bank has direct or indirect control or
has significant influence over the financial and managerial decision-making of a person or entity.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank as a leasee assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Bank uses
the definition of a lease in TFRS 16.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Bank has elected not to separate non-lease components and
account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, except
for leases of low-value assets and short-term leases which is recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset is measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, and
adjusted for any remeasurements of lease liability. The cost of right-of-use asset includes the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of restoration costs, less any lease incentives
received. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Bank
by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Bank will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the samie basis as those of property and equipment.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Bank incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments included fixed payments
less any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, The lease payments also include
amount under purchase, extension or termination option if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise
option. Variable lease payments that do not depend on index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The Bank determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in lease term, change in lease payments, change in the estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or a change in the assessment of purchase,
extension or termination options. When the {ease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Bank presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

S Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

COVID-19 pandemic is still on going, while vaccines for COVID-19 are being rolled out during 2021.
Due to uncertainty of the situation, the Bank applied accounting guidance of temporary relaxation
measure for entities which provide relief measures to debtors who are adversely affected by the Thai
economy in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021. The accounting
guidelines has issued guideline to provide relief measures to debtors from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2021. The debtors entitled to the relief measures under this guideline must have potential to
continue their business or repay their debt in the future either directly or indirectly adversely affected
by the situation. Regarding the impacts on the Bank’s performance, the Bank’s ECL still reflect fair
position through closely monitoring. This can ensure that in times of downtum, credit risk development
is captured and buffered with prudence

However, as at 30 September 2021, none of the Bank’s borrower came to use the relief as mentioned
above.

In addition, BoT announced to temporarily reduce the rate of contribution from financial institutions to
the FIDF submission rate from 0.46% to 0.23% per year which is effective from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022. The reduced rate has been reflected in the financial statements with effect from
1 January 2020,

29



ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 September 2021

6.1

6.2

Financial risk management
Risk management framework

The use of financial instruments is fundamental to the Bank’s businesses of providing banking and other
financial services to our customers. The associated financial risks (primarily credit, market, and liquidity
risks) are a significant portion of the Bank’s key material risks. The Board of Directors is responsible
for establishing and overseeing the Bank’s risk management framework that is adopted from and aligned
to the ANZ Banking Group Limited’s risk management framework and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Board of Directors has delegated authority to the Risk Management Committee
(“RMC”) to develop and monitor compliance with the Bank’s risk management policies.

The Bank, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined
and robust control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The notes below detail the Bank’s financial risk management policies, processes and quantitative
disclosures in relation to the key financial risks.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss and/or non-compliance with laws resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and/or systems, or from external events. This definition includes legal risk,
and the risk of reputational loss or damage arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems, but excludes strategic risk.

The Bank operates a three-lines-of-defence model to manage Operational Risk, with each line of defence
having defined roles, responsibilities and escalation paths to support effective communication and
effective management of our operational risk. The Bank also has ongoing review mechanisms to ensure
Operational Risk and Compliance Framework continues to meet organisational needs and regulatory
requirements.

The Board has approved the ANZ Thai Operational Risk Management Policy. This policy is an
addendum to the ANZ Banking Group Limited’s Operational Risk and Compliance Framework and
aligns to relevant Bank of Thailand policy requirements. The Risk Management Committee assists the
Board in the effective discharge of its responsibilities for operational risk management and for the
management of the related compliance obligations. The committee also assists the Board by providing
an objective oversight of the implementation by management of the Bank’s risks management
framework and its related operation and by enabling an institution-wide view of current and future risk
position relative to its risk appetite and capital strength.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from a counterparty failing to fulfil its obligations; or a
decrease in credit quality of a counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Credit Risk incorporates the
risks associated with the Bank lending to customers who could be impacted by climate change or by
changes to laws, regulations, or other policies adopted by governments or regulatory authorities,
including carbon pricing and climate change adaptation or mitigation policies.

Credit Risk framework is top down, being defined by credit principles and policies. Credit policies,

requirements and procedures cover all aspects of the credit life cycle — for example: transaction
structuring, risk grading, initial approval, ongoing management and problem debt management.
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Responsibility for the strategies and policies relating to the management of credit risk lies with the
Board of Directors. Responsibility for day to day management of credit risk is delegated by the Board
of Directors to the Bank’s Risk Management Committee.

Credit risk overview, management and control responsibilities

Granting credit facilities to customers is one of the Bank’s major sources of income. As this activity is
also a principal risk, the Bank dedicates considerable resources to its management. The Bank assumes
credit risk from traditional lending to customers as well as from interbank, treasury, trade finance and
capital markets.

Credit risk management framework ensures that approach has consistently apply across the Bank when
the Bank measures, monitors and manages the credit risk appetite set by the Board of Directors. The
Board is assisted and advised by the Risk Management Commiitee and the Credit Committee in
discharging its duty to oversee credit risk. The Risk Management Committee reviews and proposes the
credit risk appetite and credit strategies while the Credit Committee approves credit transactions beyond
the discretion of executive management.

The Bank quantifies credit risk through an internal credit rating system (masterscales) to ensure
consistency across exposure types and to provide a consistent framework for reporting and analysis.
The system uses models and other tools to measure the following for customer exposures:

Probability of Default (PD) Expressed by a Customer Credit Rating (CCR), reflecting the Bank’s
assessment of a customer’s ability to service and repay debt.

Exposure at Default (EAD) The expected balance sheet exposure at default taking into account
repayments of principal and interest, expected additional drawdowns
and accrued interest at the time of default.

Loss Given Default (LGD) Expressed by a Security Indicator (SI) ranging from A to G. The SI
is calculated by reference to the percentage of loan covered by
security which the Bank can realise if a customer defaults. The A-G
scale is supplemented by a range of other SIs which cover factors
such as cash cover and sovereign backing.

The Bank’s specialist credit risk teams develop and validate the Bank’s PD and LGD rating models.
The outputs from these models drive our day-to-day credit risk management decisions including
origination, pricing, approval levels, regulatory capital adequacy, economic capital allocation, credit
provisioning and credit monitoring,

All customers with whom the Bank has a credit relationship are assigned a CCR at origination using the
approach for the Large and More Complex Lending rating model that provides a consistent and
structured assessment, with judgement required around the use of out-of-model factors. The Bank
handle credit approval on a dual approval basis, jointly with the business writer and an independent
credit officer.
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Credit review

The Audit unit, independent unit, is responsible for performing the assessments and making
recommendations to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of credit-related processes and the risk
management processes. An annual Credit Review, as required by the Bank of Thailand, is carried out
by the qualified independent unit under Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
(ANZBGL). The review exercise is to ensure that the credit process and account administration are
effectively conduct in compliance with policies and procedures, and in compliance with the regulatory
requirements.

Credit quality analysis
The following tables set out information about the credit quality as at 30 September 2021 of financial

assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI without
taking into account collateral or other credit enhancement. The description of stage 1-3 are disclosed in

note 4.
30 September 2021
Excess
Stage 1 Stage 2 reserve Total
(in thousand Baht)

Interbank and money market

items (asset)
[nvestment grades 15,868,819 - - 15,868,819
Gross carrying amount 15,868,819 - - 15,868,819
Less allowance for expected

credit loss {7,850) - - (7.850)

Net carrying amount 15,860,969 - - 15,860,969
Loans to customers and

accrued interest receivables
Investment grades 12,817,315 - - 12,817,315
Speculative grades 6,413,033 325,453 - 6,738,486
Gross carrying amount 19,230,348 325,453 - 19,555,801
Less allowance for expected

credit loss (106,109) (9,131) (36,049) (154,289)

Net carrying amount 19,124,239 316,322 (39,049) 19,401,512
Investments in debt instruments

measured at FVOCI
Investment grades 5,848,004 - - 5,848,004
Gross carrying amount 5,848,004 - - 5,848,004
Allowance for expected credit loss (6,664) - - (6,664)
Undrawn loan commitments and

financial guarantee contracts
Committed unused credit line 2,000,000 9,210 - 2,009,210
Financial guarantee 1,854,605 145,735 - 2,000,340
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Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The Bank uses collateral for on and off-balance sheet exposures to mitigate credit risk if a counterparty
cannot meet its repayment obligations. Where there is sufficient collateral, an expected credit loss is not
recognised. This is largely the case for certain lending products that are secured by corresponding
investment for which the margin loans are utilised and for reverse repurchase agreements. For some
products, the collateral provided by customers is fundamental to the product’s structuring, so it is not
strictly the secondary source of repayment - for example, lending secured by trade receivables is
typically repaid by the collection of those receivables. In case there is no collateral or the collateral does
not cover exposures, the Bank holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit
exposures such as letter of guarantee to mitigate the risk of credit exposures.

Information related to ECL
Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
In determining what constitutes a SICR, the Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative information:

i.  Internal credit rating grade
For the Bank’s portfolio, a SICR is determined by comparing the Customer Credit Rating (CCR)
applicable to a facility at reporting date to the CCR at origination of that facility. A CCR is
assigned to each borrower which reflects the probability of default of the borrower and
incorporates both borrower and non-borrower specific information, including forward-looking
information. CCRs are subject to review at least annually or more frequently when an event occurs
which could affect the credit risk of the customer.

ii.  Backstop criteria
The Bank uses 30 days past due arrears as a backstop criteria.

iii. COVID-19
As disclosed in Note 5 for facilities subject to the COVID-19 repayment deferral arrangements.

Forward-looking information

Forward-looking information is incorporated into both our assessment of whether a financial asset has
experienced a SICR since its initial recognition and in our estimate of ECL. In applying forward-looking
information for estimating ECL, the Bank considers four probability-weighted forecast economic
scenarios.

The four scenarios are described in terms of macro-economic variables used in the PD, LGD and EAD
models (collectively the ECL models) depending on the portfolio and country of the borrower. Examples
of the variables include unemployment rates, GDP growth rates, house price indices, commercial
property price indices and consumer price indices. Probability weighting of each scenario is determined
by management considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the base case economic scenario, as
well as specific portfolio considerations where required.

Management overlay
The Bank calculated the ECL based on the model, management overlay was considered when

underlying assumptions or data used to estimate ECLs do not reflect current circumstances, events or
conditions of the Bank at the reporting date as post-model adjustments.
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6.3

Concentrations of credit risk

The Bank monitors its credit portfolio to manage risk concentration and rebalance the portfolio. The
Bank also applies single customer counterparty limits to protect against unacceptably large exposures
to one single customer by sector. Composition of financial instruments that give rise to credit risk by
industry sector are presented below.

30 September 2021
Loans to
customers
Interbank and Investments and accrued
money market in debt interest Credit Financial
items (asset) instruments receivables facilities guarantee
(in thousand Buht)
Gross carrying amount 15,868,819 5,848,004 19,555,801 - -
Credit facilities - - - 2,009,210 2,000,340
Concentrations by sector
Corporate customers
Manufacturing and commerce - - 11,681,751 - -
Real estate and construction - - 1,697,080 - -
Infrastructure and services - - 077,453 - -
Others - - 5,199,517 - -
Financial institutions
Government 408,308 5,848,004 - - -
Commercial banks 15,460,511 - - - -
Market risk

Marketrisk is the risk to the Bank’s earnings arising from changes in any interestrates, foreign exchange
rates, credit spreads, volatility and correlations; or fluctuation in bond, commodity or equity prices.

The Bank’s risk management and control framework for Market Risk involves quantifying the
magnitude of market risk within trading and balance sheet portfolios through independent risk
measurement. This identifies the range of possible outcomes, the likely timeframe, and the likelihood
of the outcome occurring. Then we allocate an appropriate amount of capital to support these activities.

Market risk overview, management and control responsibilities

Market risk stems from the Bank’s trading and balance sheet management activities and the impact of
changes and correlation between interest rates, foreign exchange rates, credit spreads and volatility in
bond, commodity or equity prices. The Board delegates responsibility for day-to-day management of
both market risks and compliance with market risk policies to the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
and the Asset & Liability Management Committee (ALCO).

Within overall strategies and policies established by the Board, business units and risk management
have joint responsibility for the control of market risk. The Market Risk team (a specialist risk
management unit independent of the business) allocates market risk limits at various levels and monitors
and reports on them daily. The detailed framework allocates individual limits to manage and control
exposures using risk factors and profit and loss limits.
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Management, measurement and reporting of market risk is undertaken in two broad categories:

. Trade Market Risk: Risk of loss from changes in the value of financial instruments due to
movements in price factors for both physical and derivative trading positions.
. Non-Traded Market Risk: Risk of loss associated with the management of non-traded interest

rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange exposures. This includes interest rate risk in the
banking book. This risk of loss arises from adverse changes in the overall and relative level of
interest rates for different tenors, differences in the actual versus expected net interest margin,
and the potential valuation risk associated with embedded options in financial instruments and
bank products

Measurement of market risk

The Bank primarily manage and control market risk using Value at Risk (VaR), sensitivity analysis and
stress testing. VaR gauges the Group’s possible daily loss based on historical market movements. The
Bank’s VaR approach for both traded and non-traded risk is historical simulation. We use historical
changes in market rates, prices and volatilities over the previous 500 business days using one-day
holding period. Back testing is used to ensure our VaR models remain accurate.

The Bank measures VaR at a 99% confidence interval which means there is a 99% chance that a loss
will not exceed the VaR for the relevant holding period.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the potential loss from changes in market interest rates or their implied volatilities.

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, financial assets and liabilities classified by types of interest rates
were as follows:

30 September 2021
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total
(in thousand Baht)
Financial assets
Cash - - 603 603
Interbank and money market items” 5,605 15,245,424 617,700 15,868,619
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss - 1,489,321 - 1,489,321
Investments, net - 5,848,004 - 5,848,004
Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables’ 9,441,942 10,039,274 74,585 19,555,801
Trading securities receivable - - 245,161 245,161
Total financial assets 9,447,637 32,622,023 938,049 43,007,709
Financial liabilities
Deposits - 13,090,059 812,382 13,902,441
Interbank and money market items - 8,090,469 220,405 8,310,874
Total financial liabilities - 21,180,528 1,032,787 22,213,315

*Before deducting allowance for expected credit losses
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Financial assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items*
Investments, net
Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables’
Trading securities receivable
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Trading securities payable

Total financial liabilities

*Before deducting allowance for doubtful accounts

30 September 2020
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total

{in thousand Baht)
- - 612 612
4,584 11,599,077 526,690 12,130,351
- 7,977,176 - 7.977,176
8,257,362 12,787,791 37,827 21,082,980
- - 50,816 50,816
8,261,946 32,364,044 615,945 41,241,935
- 10,378,827 678,436 11,057,263
- 9,180,792 220,297 9,401,089
- - 28,420 28,420
- 19,559,619 927,153 20,486,772

The Bank’s average interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities, together with the average
interest rates as at 30 September 2021 and 2020 and are as follows:

Financial assets

Interbank and money market items
Investments, net

Loans to customers

Total

Financial liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Total

Financial assets

Interbank and money market items
Investments, net

Loans to customers

Total

Financial liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Total

30 September 2021

Average Average
balance Interest interest rate
(in thousand Baht) (% per annum)
10,671,601 54,069 0.51
7,909,297 83,507 1.06
24,064,408 426,668 1.77
42,643,306 564,244 1.32
12,965,296 60,468 0.47
8,676,119 9,722 0.11
21,641,415 70,190 0.32
30 September 2020
Average Average
balance Interest interest rate
{in thousand Baht) (% per annum)
3,925,753 35,124 0.89
8,650,871 125,795 1.45
22,317,240 485,920 2.18
34,893,864 646,839 1.85
8,804,963 03,911 1.07
4,895,372 27,740 0.57
13,700,335 121,651 0.89
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Significant financial assets and financial liabilities classified by earlier of maturity or interest repricing

as at 30 September 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

30 September 2021

Reprice within Reprice Non
Immediate 3 3-12 1-5 over interest
Repricing  months months years Syears  bearing Total
(in thousand Baht)
Financial assefs
Cash - - - - - 603 603
Interbank and money market
items” 5,695 13,927,101 1,318,323 - - 617,700 15,868,819
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss - 1,489,321 - - - - 1,489,321
Investments, net - 500,523 3,280,791 2,066,690 - - 5,848,004
Loans to customers and accrued
interest receivables’ - 17,223,815 1,475402 781,999 - 74,585 19,555,801
Trading securities receivable - - - - - 245,161 245,161
Total financial assets 5,695 33,140,760 6,074,516 2,848,689 - 038,049 43,007,709
Financial liabilities
Deposits 5,569,698 5,430,361 2,090,000 - - 812,382 13,902,441
Interbank and money market
items - _ 8,090,469 - - - 220405 8,310,874
Total financial liabilities 5,569,698 13,520,830 2,090,000 - - 1,032,787 22,213,315
"Before deducting allowance for expected credit losses
30 September 2020
Reprice within Reprice Non
Immediate 3 3-12 1-5 over interest
Repricing  months months years 5years  bearing Total
(in thousand Baht)
Financial assets
Cash - - - - - 612 612
Interbank and money market
items* 4,584 11,599,077 - - - 526,690 12,130,351
Investments, net - 480,779 1,745,518 3,750,879 - - 1,977,176
Loans to customers and accrued
interest receivables - 16,430,598 2,816,936 1,797,619 - 37,827 21,082,980
Trading securities receivable - - - - - 50,816 50,816
Total financial assets 4,584 28,510,454 4,562,454 7,548,498 - 615,945 41,241,935
Financial labilities
Deposits 3,356,969 6,705,279 316,579 - - 678,436 11,057,263
Interbank and money market
items - 9,180,792 - - - 220,297 9,401,089
Trading securities payable - - - - - 28,420 28,420
Total financial liabilities 3,356,969 15,886,071 316,579 - - 927,153 20,486,772

*Befare deducting allowance for doubtful accounts
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(6)

6.4

Sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the impact on earnings for the next 12 months by assuming an increase in interest
rate by 100bps:

30 September 2021
Total effect on net profit
(in thousand Baht)
Baht 204,968
US Dollar (86,954)
Euro 16,215
Total effect of interest rates change 134,229

Currency exchange rate risk

Currency risk is the potential loss arising from changes in foreign exchange rates or their implied
volatilities.

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, net open position assets (liabilities) denominated in various
currencies, are as follows:

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
(in thousand US Dollar)
Net foreign currency exposure
UsSD 3,407 6,429
EUR ™ 360 391
AUD® 57 45
Others @ 80 381

) Balance is stated in USD equivalent
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet payment obligations as they fall due, including
repaying depositors or maturing wholesale debt; or the Bank having insufficient capacity to fund
increases in assets. :

Key principles in managing the Bank Liquidity and Funding Risk include maintain the Bank’s ability
to meeting liquidity ‘survival horizons® under a range of stress scenarios to meet cash flow obligations
over a short-to-medium term horizon; maintaining a strong structural funding profile; and maintaining
a portfolio of high-quality liquid assets to act as a source of liquidity in times of stress.

Liquidity risk overview, management and control responsibilities

Management of liquidity and funding risks are overseen by ALCO. The Bank’s liquidity and funding
risks are governed by a set of principles approved by the Board of Directors.

According to Bank of Thailand notification number Sor Nor Sor 2/2561, dated 25 January 2018,
the Bank is required to disclose Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) in the Bank’s website.
The Bank will disclose the LCR of the Bank as at 30 September 2021 in the Bank’s website,
www.anz.com/thailand/en/auxiliary/resource-centre/, under Financial Report section, within January
2022,
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The remaining periods to maturity of significant financial assets and financial liabilities as at
30 September 2021 and 2020 based on contractual maturity are as follows:

30 September 2021
Maturity Maturity within Maturity
on 3 3-12 1-5 over No
demand months months years 3 years maturity Total
{in thousand Baht)

Financial assets
Cash - - - - - 603 603
Interbank and money

market items” 5,695 13,927,101 1,318,323 - - 617,700 15,868,819
Financial assets measured

at fair value through

profit or loss - 1,489,321 - - - - 1,489,321
Investments, net - 500,523 3,280,791 2,066,690 - - 5,848,004
Loans to customers and

accrued interest

receivables” - 7.879,207 1,767,402 9,834,607 - 74,585 19,555,801
Trading securities

receivable - - - - - 245161 245,161
Total financial assets 5,695 23,796,152 6,366,516 11,901,297 - 938,049 43,007,709
Financial liabilities
Deposits 6,382,080 5,430,361 2,090,000 - - - 13,902,441
Interbank and money

market items 220,405  8.090,469 - - - - 8.310,874
Total financial liabilities _ 6,602,485 13,520,830 2,090,000 - - - 22,213,315
Net liquidity gap (6,596,790) 10,275,322 4,276,516 11,901,297 - 938,040 20,794,394

* Before deducting allowance for expected credit losses

30 September 2020

Maturity Maturity within Maturity
on 3 3I-12 1-5 over No
demand months months years 5 years maturity Total
(in thousand Baht)

Financial assets
Cash - - - - - 612 612
Interbank and money

market items” 4,584 11,599,077 - - - 526,650 12,130,351
Investments, net - 480,779 1,745,518 5,750,879 - - 7,977,176
Loans to customers and

accrued interest

receivables” - 9,270,569 3,108,936 8,665,648 - 37,827 21,082,980
Trading securities

receivable - - - - - 30,816 50,816
Total financial assets 4,584 21,350,425 4,854,454 14,416,527 - 615,945 41,241,935
Financial liabilities
Deposits 4,035,405 6,705,279 316,579 - - - 11,057,263
Interbank and money

market items 220,297 9,180,792 - - - - 9,401,089
Trading securities payable - - - - - 28,420 28420
Total financial liabilities 4,255,702 15,886,071 316,579 - - 28,420 20,486,772
Net liquidity gap (4,251,118) 5,464,354 4,537,875 14,416,527 - 587,525 20,755,163

* Before deducting allowance for doubiful accounts
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7.1

Derivatives

The remaining periods to maturity of the notional amount of derivatives as at 30 September 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

Less than 1
year

Foreign currency related
Forward exchange contracts
Currency swap contracts

Interest rate related
Interest rate swap

Less than 1
year

Foreign currency related
Forward exchange contracts
Currency swap contracts

Interest rate related
Interest rate swap

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

66,445,570
20,825,332

77,872,528

58,969,717
7,938,987

38,917,850

30 September 2021
Notional amount

Within 1-5  More than 5
years years Total
(in thousand Baht)
3,914,367 - 70,359,937
18,928,542 291,467 40,045,341
134,086,212 10,728,008 222,686,748
30 September 2020
Notional amount
Within 1-5 More than 5
years years Total
(in thousand Balt)
2,860,202 - 61,829,919
20,167,246 - 28,106,233
164,987,869 10,665,000 214,570,719

Financial assets, liabilities and derivatives measures at fair value

The fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position are as

follows:
Fair value
Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousand Baht)

30 September 2021
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value

through profit or loss 1,489,321 - 1,489,321
Derivative assets
- Foreign exchange rate 3,003,793 - 3,003,793
- Interest rate 1,764,165 - 1,764,165
Investments in debt instruments at fair value

through other comprehensive income 5,848,004 - 5,848,004
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities
- Foreign exchange rate 2,380,011 - 2,380,011
- Interest rate 1,776,168 - 1,776,168
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30 September 2020
Financial assets

Derivative assets

- Foreign exchange rate

- Interest rate

Trading securities
Available-for-sale securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities

- Foreign exchange rate
- Interest rate

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousand Baht)
- 1,235,845 - 1,235,845
- 2,786,006 - 2,786,006
- 480,779 - 480,779
- 7,496,397 - 7,496,397
- 1,211,907 - 1,211,907
- 2,818,627 - 2,818,627

There were no transfers between the Level of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended

30 September 2021.

Type

Forward exchange contracts

Interest rate swaps

Investments in government bonds

Valuation technique

The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange
rates at the reporting date and present value calculations
based on high credit quality yield curves in the respective
currencies.

The fair value is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. Estimates of future floating-
rate cash flows are based on quoted swap rates, futures
prices and interbank borrowing rates. Estimated cash flows
are discounted using a yield curve constructed from similar
sources and which reflects the relevant benchmark
interbank rate used by market participants for this purpose
when pricing interest rate swaps. The fair value estimate to
a credit risk adjustment for the Bank and counter parties that
reflected based on credit spreads derived from current credit
spreads derived from current credit default swap or bond
prices.

The fair value of investiments in government-sector debt
securities is determined, using yield rates or prices quoted
on the Thai Bond Market Association (“ThaiBMA™) as of
the reporting date.
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7.2 Financial assets, liabilities and derivatives not measures at fair value

Fair values hierarchy of financial instruments which are not measured at fair value and for which there
is a significant difference with carrying amount as of 30 September 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Carrying Fair value
amount Level 3
(in thousand Baht)
30 September 2021
Financial assets
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 19,401,512 19,574,210
Financial liabilities
Deposits 13,902,441 13,895,867
Carrying Fair value
amount Level 3
{in thousand Baht)
30 September 2020
Financial assets
Loeans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 20,872,529 21,105,563
Financial liabilities
Deposits 11,057,263 11,062,538
Type Valuation technique
Interbank and money market items Fair value of Interbank and money market items calculated

(assets and liabilities) and Deposits: ~ based on present value of estimated cash flows, using the
current interest rate in the money market.

Loans to customers and accrued Fair value of fixed rate loans to customers that have remaining
interest receivables: maturity within 1 year of the reporting date approximates the
carrying value at the reporting date. Fair value for fixed
interest loans to customers which the remaining maturity
more than | year is estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis and using interest rates currently being offered for
loans to customers with similar terms to borrowers of similar
credit quality.

8  Maintenance of capital fund
The ratios of capital to assets (Capital Adequacy Ratio) as of 30 September 2021 and 2020 were
calculated from the financial statements of the Bank. The Bank has chosen to adopt the Standardised

Approach (SA) for credit risk and market risk weight assets calculation, and Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) for operational risk weight assets calculation which is consistent with BoT requirements,
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30 September 30 September

2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
Tier I capital
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
Issued and paid-up share capital 20,000,000 20,000,000
Legal reserve 23,029 13,246
Retained earnings after appropriation 56,665 56,665
Other reserves 18,287 34,484
Less Capital deduction items on CET1 (31,807 (26,603)
Total Tier 1 Capital Base 20,066,174 20,077,792
Tier 2 capital
Provision for normal classified assets 142,124 218,642
Total Tier 2 Capital Base 142,124 218,642
Total Capital Base 20,208,298 20,296,434
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 32,790,433 28,826,879
The BoT’s The BoT’s
regulatory regulatory
minimum 30 September  minimum 30 September
requirement 2021 requirement 2020
(%)
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.00 61.63 11.00 70.41
Tier-1 Capital ratio 8.50 61.20 8.50 69.65
Tier-1 Common Equity ratio 7.00 61.20 7.00 69.65
Tier-2 Capital ratio - 0.43 - 0.76

According to Bank of Thailand notification number For Gor Gor (12) Wor 1030/2562 dated 10 July
2019, the Bank is required to disclose capital after deducting capital add-on arising from Single Lending
Limit, effective dated 15 July 2019. As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, the Bank has no add-on arising
from Single Lending Limit.

In accordance with the Bank of Thailand Notification No. Sor Nor Sor 14/2562 dated 28 June 2019, Re: “The
Disclosure of Capital Requirements of Commercial Banks (No. 2)”, the Bank intends to disclose Capital
Maintenance information as of 30 September 2021 within 4 months after the year end date, as indicated in the
notification, through the Bank’s website www.anz.com/thailand/en/auxiliary/resource-centre/

Capital management

The Bank’s capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to
support the development of its business, to meet regulatory capital requirements.
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9 C(Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

10

2021
Amortised
FVTPL FVOCI Cost Total

Financial assets
Cash - - 603 603
Interbank and money market items, net - - 15,860,969 15,860,969
Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss 1,489,321 - - 1,489,321
Derivative assets 4,767,958 - - 4,767,958
Investments, net - 5,848,004 - 5,848,004
Loans to customers and accrued interest

receivables, net - - 19,401,512 19,401,512
Other financial assets - - 320,777 320,777
Total 6,257,279 5,848,004 35,583,861 47,689,144
Financial liabilities
Deposits - - 13,902,441 13,902,441
Interbank and money market items - - 8,310,874 8,310,874
Liabilities payable on demand - - 943 943
Derivative liabilities 4,156,179 - - 4,156,179
Other financial liabilities - - 1,053,869 1,053,869
Total 4,156,179 - 23,268,127 27,424,306
Interbank and money market items, net (assets)

2021 2020
Note {in thousand Baht)

Domestic
Bank of Thailand 408,308 417,098 -
Commercial banks 15,251,154 11,590,640
Total 15,659,462 12,007,738
Add acerued interest receivables and undue interest income 3,175 2,437
Less allowance for expected credit losses / allowance for doubtful accounts 15 (7,850) (8,060)
Total domestic, net 15,654,787 12,002,115
Foreign
USDh 60,697 22,580
EUR 20,800 47,276
JPY 1,223 771
AUD 120,204 35,046
Others 3,258 10,532
Total 206,182 120,205
Add (less) accrued interest receivables and undue interest income - 29
Less allowance for expected credit losses/ allowance for doubtful accounts 15 - (131)
Total foreign, net 206,182 120,045
Total domestic and foreign, net 15,860,969 12,122,160
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11

12

13

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

As at 30 September 2021, trading financial assets consist of

Fair value
(in thousand Baht)
Government bonds 1,489,321
Total 1,489,321
Derivatives

Derivatives held for trading

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, the fair value and notional amount of derivatives classified by type
of risks are as follows:

30 September 2021 30 September 2020
Fair value Naotional Fair value Notional
Type of risks Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities amount
(in thousand Bahi)
Foreign exchange rate 3,003,793 2,380,011 110,405,278 1,235,845 1,211,907 89,936,152
Interest rate 1,764,163 1,776,168 222,686,748 2,786,006 2,818,627 214,570,719
Total 4,767,958 4,156,179 333,092,026 4,021,851 4,030,534 304,506,871

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, proportions of the notional amount of derivative transactions, classified
by counterparties, consisted of:

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
Counterparties %)
Financial institutions 29.59 30.88
Related parties 55.24 59.55
Other parties 15.17 9.57
Total 100.00 100.00

Investments, net

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, the Bank classifies investment types as follows:

30 September
2021
Note Fair value
(in thousand Baht)

Investments in debt instruments at FVOCI

Government bonds 5,848,004
Total 5,848,004
Allowance for expected credit losses 15 6,064
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30 September

2020
Fair value
(in thousand Baht)

Trading securities

Government bonds 480,779
Total ' 480,779
Available-for-sale securities

Government bonds 7,496,397
Total 7,496,397
Total investments, net 7,977,176

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net

14.1 Classified by type of loans

14.2

14.3

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
{in thousand Baht)
Loans to customers 19,481,242 21,045,153
Add  accrued interest receivables and undue interest income 74,559 37,827
Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables 19,555,801 21,082,980
Less allowance for expected credit losses / allowance for doubtful
accounts (154,289) (210,451)

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 19,401,512 20,872,529

Classified by currency and residence of debtors

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, the Bank’s loans are to Thai resident customer only.

30 September 30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
THB 13,414,092 13,231,422
USD 4,444,629 3,269,434
EUR 1,697,080 4,582,124
Total 19,555,801 21,082,980
Classified by account status
Loans to
customers and Allowance
accrued interest for expected
receivables credit losses
(Note 15)
(in thousand Baht)

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
At 30 September 2021
Stagel - Performing 19,230,348 106,109
Stage2 - Under-performing 325,453 9,131
Excess reserve - 39,049
Total 19,555,801 154,289
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Net amount Rate used
Loans to used to set for sefting the
customers and  the allowance allowance Allowance
accrued interest  for doubtful for doubtful for doubtful
receivables accounts accounts accounts
(in thousand Baht) (%) (in thousand Baht)
At 30 September 2020
Minimum allowance as per
BoT’ Regulations

Pass 21,082,980 21,045,153 1 210,451
Total 21,082,980 21,045,153 210,451

15 Allowance for expected credit losses / allowance for doubtful accounts

Movements of allowance for expected credit losses for the year ended 30 September 2021 and 2020 are

as follows.
Under-
Interbank and money market items, net Performing performing Total
(in thousand Baht)
30 September 2021
Beginning balance 2,084 - 2,084
Changes on revaluation of loss allowance and derecognition 2,391 - 2,391
New financial assets originated or purchased 3,375 - 3,375
Ending balance 7,850 - 7,850
Under-
Investment, net Performing performing Total
(in thousand Baht)
30 September 2021
Beginning balance 10,339 - 10,339
Changes on revaluation of loss allowance and derecognition (4,204) - (4,204)
New financial assets originated or purchased 529 - 529
Ending balance 6,004 - 6,664
Under-
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net Performing performing Total
(in thousand Baht)
30 September 2021
Beginning balance 95,628 43,217 138,845
Stage transfer 1,267 (34,102) (32,835)
Changes on revaluation of loss allowance and derecognition 1,602 16 1,618
New financial assets originated or purchased 7,612 - 7,612
Ending balance 106,109 9,131 115,240
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Undrawn loan commitments and Under-

Jfinancial guarantee contracts Performing  performing Total

(in thousand Baht)

30 September 2021
Beginning balance 11,292 7,271 18,563
Stage transfer 592 (6,463) (5.871)
Changes on revaluation of loss allowance and

derecognition (1,578) 323 (1,255)
New financial assets originated or purchased 933 - 933
Ending balance 11,239 1,131 12,370

Special
Pass mention Total
(in thousand Baht)

30 September 2020
Beginning balance 179,946 6,231 186,177
Doubtful accounts 30,505 (6,231) 24,274
Ending balance 210,451 - 210,451

Movements in excess allowance for expected credit losses which amortised on a straight-line basis over
5 years for the year ended 30 September 2021 are as follow:

As at Profit during the As at
1 October 2020 year 30 September 2021
(in thousand Baht)
Excess allowance for expected
credit losses 48,811 (9,762) 39,049

Leasehold building improvements and equipment, net

As at 30 September 2021 and 2020, changes in leasehold building improvements, equipment and
right-of-use assets are as follows:

30 September 2021

Cost
Beginning Ending
balance Purchases balance
(in thousand Baht)
Leasehold building improvements 28,718 - 28,718
Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment 7,783 203 7,986
Computer equipment 51,598 758 52,356
Vehicle 5,409 - 5,409
Right-of-use assets 20,307 550 20,857
Total 113,815 1,511 115,326
30 September 2021
Accumulated depreciation

Beginning Ending Net book

balance Depreciation balance value

(in thousand Baht)
Leasehold building improvements 27,110 552 27,662 1,056
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 7,251 393 7,644 342
Computer equipment 41,300 3,468 44,768 7,588
Vehicle 5,378 31 5,409 -

Right-of-use assets 6,084 4,892 10,976 9,881
Total 87.123 9,336 96,459 18,867
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13.1

30 September 2020
Cost
Beginning Ending
balance Purchases Disposals balance
(in thousand Baht)
Leasehold building improvements 37,457 1,656 (10,395) 28,718
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 14,653 69 (6,939) 7,783
Computer equipment 43,928 10,988 (3,318) 51,598
Vehicle 5,409 - - 5,409
Right-of-use assets 24322 - (4,015) 20,307
Total 125,769 12,713 (24,667) 113,815
30 September 2020
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning Ending Net book
balance Depreciation Disposals balance value
(in thousand Baht)
Leasehold building improvements 27,265 10,239 (10,394) 27,110 1,608
Fumniture, fixtures and
office equipment 11,698 2,327 (6,774) 7,251 532
Computer equipment 42,938 1,680 (3,318) 41,300 10,298
Vehicle 4,296 1,082 - 5,378 31
Right-of-use assets - 6,084 - 6,084 14,223
Total 86,197 21,412 (20,486) 87,123 26,692
Other assets
30 September 30 September
Note 2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
Collateral per Credit Support Annex 283,590 139,928
Accrued interest receivables 27,990 22,934
Advance to intercompany 26 9,196 14,531
Guarantee deposits 4,751 5,641
Prepaid fees 7,393 6,230
Others 1,488 1,660
Total 334,408 190,924
Deposits
Classified by type of deposits
30 September 30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
Current 6,382,080 4,035,405
Fixed
- Less than 6 months 2,612,605 1,977,522
- More than 6 months but not over 1 year 4,907,756 5,044,336
Total 13,902,441 11,057,263
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18.2 Classified by currency and residence of depositors

30 September 2021 30 September 2020
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
(in thousand Baht)
THB 7,701,946 5,491 7,707,437 3,598,959 9,195 3,608,154
USD 6,080,850 - 6,080,850 7,430,284 - 7,430,284
GBP 37 - 37 229 - 229
EUR 18,456 - 18,456 7,102 - 7,102
JPY 1,107 - 1,107 124 - 124
AUD 94,554 - 94,554 11,370 - 11,370
Total 13,896,950 5491 13,902,441 11,048,068 9,195 11,057,263

19 Interbank and money market items (liabilities)

30 September 2021 30 September 2020
Atcall Term Total At call Term Total
(in thousand Baht)

Domestic
Other financial

institutions 220,405 - 220,405 220,297 - 220,297
Total domestic items 220,405 - 220,405 220,297 - 220,297
Foreign
USD - 8,090,469 8,090,469 - 9,180,792 9,180,792
Total foreign items - 8,090,469 8,090,469 - 9,180,792 9,180,792
Total domestic and

foreign items 220,405 8,090,469 8,310,874 220,297 9,180,792 9,401,089

20 Other liabilities

30 September 30 September

Note 2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
Due from intercompany 26 37,028 68,503
Accrued expenses 48,123 47,930
Collateral per Credit Support Annex 888,764 222,872
Income tax payable 27,636 24,224
Expected credit loss for financial guarantee and
other commitment 15 12,370 -

Withholding tax payable 374 297
Interest payable 8,453 10,094
Others 44,134 6,171
Total 1,066,882 380,091

21 Advance received from electronic payment

In accordance with the BoT notification number Sor Nor Chor 7/2561 dated 16 April 2018,
Re: Regulations on Service Business relating to Electronic Money (e-Money) and Sor Nor Chor 2/2562
dated 20 December 2019, Re: Regulations on Service Business relating to Electronic Fund Transfer
(EFT) require the Bank to disclose advance received from e-Money and EFT. As at 30 September 2021,
the Bank has no any amount of money in this regard (30 September 2020: nil).
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22 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

23

2021
Amount of
unoffsetting in statement
of financial position

Offsetting
Amount to be Net amount amount which
offsetin  presentedin isnotmetthe Relevant Item in
Gross statement stattment  accounting  financial statement of
carrying  of financial of financial  standard’s  collateral financial
amount position position conditions amount Netamount position Note
(in thousand Baht)
Financial assets
Derivative
Derivative assets 4,767,958 - 4,767,958 - (888,764) 3,879,194 assets 12
Total 4,767,958 - 4,767,958 - (888,764) 3,879,194
Financial liabilities
Derivative
Derivative liabilities 4,156,179 - 4,136,179 - (283,590) 3,872,589 liabilities iz
Total 4,156,179 - 4,156,179 - (283,590) 3,872,589

Reserves
Legal reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Bank is required to allocate not
less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward (if any), to a reserve
account (“legal reserve”™), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered
authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

On 14 January 2022, the Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2022 resolved to approve the appropriation
after deducting brought forward accumulated deficit, which is net of the effect from capital reduction
of Baht 9.78 million for an additional legal reserve from profit for the year 2021, As at 30 September
2021, the Bank has Jegal reserve amounting to Baht 23.03 million.

Other components of equity

Fair value reserve after 1 October 2020

The fair value reserve comprises:

- the cumulative net change in fair value of debt securities at FVOCI until the assets are derecognised
or reclassified. This amount is adjusted by the amount of allowance for expected credit loss.

Fair value reserve before 1 October 2020

The fair value changes in available-for-sale investments comprises the cumulative net change in the fair
value of available-for-sale investments until the investments are derecognised or impaired.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately
in OCI and presented as a part of other reserves.
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24 Assets pledged as collateral

25

26

Assets pledged as collateral as at 30 September 2021 and 2020 consist of:

Government bonds

- Pledged for liquidity management with the BoT

Total

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees of loans
Letters of credit
Other contingencies
Total

Related parties

30 September 30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
393,786 1,687
393,786 1,687
30 September 30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
751,947 701,729
50,472 18,996
1,197,921 2,705,865
2,000,340 3,426,590

Relationships with key management and other related parties arc as follows:

Name of entity/Personnel

Key management personnel

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited

ANZ Funds Pty. Ltd.

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited Singapore

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited United Kingdom

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited Japan

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited New Zealand

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited Hong Kong

Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited Frankfurt

ANZ Global Services and Operations
(Manila), Inc.

Australia New Zealand Banking
Group Limited, Manila, Philippines

Country of
incorporation/
nationality
Thai and other
nationality

Australia
Australia
Singapore
United Kingdom
Japan

New Zealand
Hong Kong
Germany
Philippines

Philippines
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Nature of relationship

Persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the
Bank, directly or indirectly including
any director (whether executive on
otherwise).

Ultimate parent company of the Bank
Parent company of the Bank
Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group

Affiliates of ANZ Group
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Name of entity/Personnel Country of Nature of relationship
incorporation/
nationality
ANZ Support Services India Private  India Affiliates of ANZ Group
Limited
Australia New Zealand Banking United States Affiliates of ANZ Group
Group Limited New York
PT Bank ANZ Indonesia Indonesia Affiliates of ANZ Group

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies

Interest rate Based on market rate
Services Contractually agreed price
Derivatives Based on market price

Significant transactions with key management and other related parties are as follows:

For the year ended 30 September 2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)

Interest income 501 1,744
Other operating income 8,766 13,404
Interest expense 8,673 15,276
Technology service expenses charged by ANZ Banking Group 40,449 66,532
Key management personnel

Short-term employee benefits 97,943 96,434
Post-employment benefit 7,190 5,319
Total key management personnel compensation 105,133 101,753

Significant balances and business transactions with other related parties

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
{in thousand Baht)
Interbank and money market items (assets)
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 120,204 37,907
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited New Zealand 930 835
PT Bank ANZ Indonesia - 13,131
121,134 51,873

Derivative assets
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 1,537,123 2,460,431
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Hong Kong - 1,671
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Japan 582 3,015

1,537,765 2,465,117
Other assets
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 9,196 14,531
Interbank and money market items (liabilities)
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Singapore 8,090,469 9,180,792
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Derivative liabilities
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Japan

Other liabilities

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Singapore
ANZ Support Services India Private Limited

ANZ Global Services and Operations (Manila), Inc.

Other guarantees

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited United Kingdom
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Singapore
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Frankfurt
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited New Zealand

Derivatives - Foreign currency related

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Japan
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Hong Kong

Derivatives - Interest rate related
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Significant agreements with related parties

Outsourcing Services

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)

1,988,023 2,754,248

23 -
1,988,046 2,754,248
36,836 68,105
22 28
122 174
48 196
37,028 68,503
0,246 52,811
203,001 416,547
15,018 979,267
283,425 297,242
16,961 15,829
527,651 1,761,696
23,585,929 19,163,060
19,209 54,920
- 53,557
23,605,138 19,271,537

160,397,476 162,065,401

As a wholly owned subsidiary of ANZBGL, the Bank, upon its commencement date of the banking
business, has entered into the outsourcing participation agreement, agreeing to terms and conditions of
the Global Master Service Agreement and the Global Head Terms, in obtaining certain non-strategic
services including technology from ANZBGL as well as its 2 hubs, namely ANZ Global Services and
Operations (Manila) Inc., and ANZ Support Services India Private Limited. Fees payable are based
upon the terms of each participation agreement which include actual costs incurred plus a margin, in
accordance with the terms in the agreements. During the year, the Bank has incurred an expense
amounting to AUD 0.48 Million (30 September 2020: AUD 2.76 million).

Interest income

For the year ended 30 September
Interbank and money market items
Investments in debt securities

Loans to customers
Total

54

2021 2020
(in thousand Bahi)
54,069 35,124
83,507 125,795
426,668 485,920
564,244 646,839
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28 Interest expenses
For the year ended 30 September

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Contribution to Deposit Protection Agency
Interest on lease liabilities

Total

29 Net fees and service income
For the year ended 30 September
Fees and service income

- Acceptance, avals and guarantees
- Others

Fees and service expenses
Net

2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
46,267 82,660
9,722 27,740
14,201 11,251
249 404
70,439 122,055
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
3,135 11,931
11,965 10,458
15,100 22,389
(10,618) (11,740)
4,482 10,649

30 Net gain (losses) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss /

Net gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions
For the year ended 30 September

Foreign currencies and foreign currency related derivatives
Interest rate related derivatives

Debt securities
Net

31 Net gain on investments

For the year ended 30 September

Gains on sales
- Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income / Available-for-sale securities

Total

32 Employees expenses
For the year ended 30 September
Salary and bonus
Employee defined benefit plans

Others
Total
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2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
90,925 147,912
18,559 2,597
(12,433) 35,755
97,051 186,264
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
1,291 1,668
1,291 1,668
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
207,937 203,056
7,168 4,832
59,105 64,879
274,210 272,767
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33 Premises and equipment expenses

34

35

For the year ended 30 September

Rental and service expenses
Depreciation

Data communication cost
Telephone expense
Information service fee
Others

Total

Other expenses
For the year ended 30 September

Consultant and professional fee
Advertising expenses
Information service subscription
License fee

Head Office allocation charges
Others

Total

2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
9,123 10,382
9,336 21,412
5,765 5,391
2,505 2,341
3,789 4,109
10,798 20,964
41,316 64,599
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
9,543 12,810
- 149
5,907 7,655
35 29
37,134 62,621
8,666 7,750
61,285 91,014

Expected credit losses / bad debt, doubtful accounts and impairment loss

For the year ended 30 September

Interbank and money market items
Investment in debt instruments measured at
fair value to other comprehensive income
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Credit facilities and financial guarantees
Total

For the year ended 30 September
Bad debts, doubtful accounts and impairment loss

Interbank and money market items
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Total

56

2021
(in thousand Baht)

5,766
(3,675)

(33,367)
(6,193)

(37,469)

2020
{(in thousand Baht)

(2,512)
24,274

21,762
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36 Income tax

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended 30 September 2021 2020
(in thousand Bahy)
Current tax expense
Current year 50,605 52,003
Prior year (290) 52
50,315 52,055
Deferred tax expense
Movements in temporary differences (1,538) 563
Prior year 383 -
(1,155) 563
Total 49,160 52,618
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended
30 September 2021 2020
Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of
tax benefit Tax tax (expense) Tax
(in thousand Baht)
Investment in debt
instruments at fair value
through other
comprehensive income (30,585) 6,117 (24,468) - - -
Available-for-sale securities - - - 23,107 (4,621) 18,486
Defined benefit plans - - - (3.233) 647 (2,586)
Total (30,585) 6,117 (24,468) 19,874 (3,974) 15,900

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 30 September

Profit before income tax expense

Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustment for prior years

Total

2021 2020
Rate Rate
(%6) (in thousand (%) (in thousand

Baht) Baht)
244,807 257,905
20.0 48,961 20.0 51,581
106 985
93 52
20.1 49,160 20.4 52,618

The Bank has applied the tax rate of 20% in measuring deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year

ended 30 September 2021 and 2020.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 30 September 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax labilities
Total

30 September 30 September
2021 2020
(in thousand Baht)
36,715 36,113
(4,908) (9,510}
31,807 26,603

Movements in total deferred tax assets during the year ended 30 September 2021 and are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets
Provisions for employee
benefits

Other assets

Other liabilities

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Investments, net
Total

Net

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets
Provisions for employee
benefits

Other assets

Other liabilities

Total

Deferred rax liabilities

Investments, net
Total

Net

{Charged) / Credited to:

At Other At
1 October comprehensive 30 September
2020 Profit or loss income 2021
(restated)
{in thousand Baht)

5,943 (1,239) - 4,704

13,823 384 - 14,207

3,478 (481) - 2,997

12,869 1,938 - 14,807

36,113 602 - 36,715

11,578 (553) (6,117) 4,908

11,578 (553) {6,117) 4,908

24,535 1,155 6,117 31,807

(Charged) / Credited to:
At Other At
1 October comprehensive 30 September
2019 Profit or loss income 2020
{(in thousand Bahi)

5,789 154 - 5,943

12,209 967 647 13,823

3,268 210 - 3,478

14,613 (1,744 - 12,869

35,879 (413) 647 36,113

4,739 150 4,621 9,510

4,739 150 4,621 9,510

31,140 (563) (3,974) 26,603
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37 Basic earnings per share
The calculations of basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 September 2021 and 2020 were based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank and the number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year as follows:
For the year ended 30 September 2021 2020
(in thousand Baht /
thousand shares)
Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank (basic) 195,647 205,287
The number of ordinary shares outstanding 2,000,000 2,000,000
Basic earnings per share (in Bahi) 0.10 0.10
38 Reclassification of accounts

Certain accounts in the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2020, which are included in
the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 for comparative purposes, have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation in the financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2021 were as follow

Before After
reclassification Reclassification reclassification
(in thousand Baht)

Statement of financial position

as at 30 September 2020
Assets
Loans to customers and accrued interest

receivables, net 20,880,858 (8.329) 20,872,529
Liabilities
Other liabilities (388,420) 8,329 (380,091)
Assets
Leasehold building improvements and

equipment, net 12,469 14,223 26,692
Right-of-use assets 14,223 (14,223) -

Pl

(Panadda Manoleehakul)
President and Chief Executive Officer

fbur= [~
(Warin Paaopanchon)
Chief Financial Officer
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